
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Historic Currituck County Courthouse Boardroom 
June 14, 2012 

7:30 p.m. 
 

7:30 p.m. Call to Order 
 
Item 1 Roll Call 
  
Item 2  Approval of May 10, 2012 Minutes 
 
Item 3 BOA 12-10 DANIEL CLAY CARTWRIGHT: Appeal of administrator’s 

decision that PB 12-06, a Special Use Permit application, is classified as a 
Junkyard/Salvageyard and is subject to the requirements of Section 3.8.1 
of the UDO.  Located at 128 Station Lane in Shawboro, Parcel 0033-000-
0050-0000, Crawford Township. 

 
Item 4  Adjournment 
 
  
 



  5/10/12 BOA Minutes: Page 1 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REGULAR MEETING 

May 10, 2012 
 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING  
The Currituck County Board of Adjustment met on May 10, 2012 at 7:30 p.m. in the 
Historic Currituck County Courthouse.  The following members were present: Bryan 
Bass, David Palmer, Christian Conner, Vivian Simpson, Cameron Tabor, and Theresa 
Dozier.  The following new member was absent: Mills Riddick. Brad Schuler, Planner; 
Tiffany Sanders, Planning Technician; Donna Voliva, Planner II; and Benjamin Gallop, 
Board of Adjustment Attorney; were also present.   
 
SWEARING IN OF NEW MEMBERS 
 
Mr. Bass introduced one new member, Ms. Vivian Simpson.  Donna Voliva, Planner II, 
swore in Ms. Simpson. The second new member, Mr. Mills Riddick was absent. 
 
RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION 
 
Mr. Bass presented Mr. Donald Ferebee and Mr. Ralph Jones, who were not present, 
with a Resolution of Appreciation for their service to the Currituck County Board of 
Adjustment. 
 
DISCUSSION ON APPOINTMENT AND TERMS OF MEMBERS 
 
The board discussed the procedure of new members becoming alternate or regular 
members at the time of appointment.  The Board of Commissioners will need to adopt a 
procedure. 
 
Mr. Tabor moved to recommend a change in procedure, for new member appointments, 
be presented to the Board of Commissioners. Ms. Dozier seconded the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously.   
 
Mr. Bass called the meeting to order and announced a quorum had been met with four 
regular members and two alternate members.  Ms. Dozier was called upon to act as a 
voting member.  Mr. Tabor was dismissed. 
 
APPROVAL OF JANUARY 12, 2012 MINUTES  
 
Mr. Palmer motioned to approve the January 12, 2012 minutes with no changes.  Mr. 
Connor seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 



  5/10/12 BOA Minutes: Page 2 

BOA 12-07 WISE MOTORS: Conditional use permit to allow automobile sales & 
rental located at 413 Caratoke Hwy in Moyock, Tax Map 9A, Lot 54, Moyock 
Township.   
 
Mr. Andy Chappell, Ms. Melinda Wise and Mr. Schuler appeared before the board and 
were sworn in. 
 
Mr. Schuler presented the following case to the Board: 
 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT CASE ANALYSIS 
 

Meeting Date: May 10, 2012 
Case Number: BOA 12-07 
Applicant/ 
Property Owner: Melinda Wise  
PIN: 009A-000-0054-0000 
Address:  413 Caratoke Highway 
Zoning District: General Business (GB) 
Township:  Moyock 
 
Request 
 
Conditional use permit to allow automotive sales and rental in a GB zoning district, 
pursuant to the Table of Permissible Uses of the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance.   
 
Narrative 
 

1. The operation will be using an existing office trailer on the site. The parking and 
display areas will be improved with gravel and concrete in compliance with the 
UDO. 

 
2. A recombination plat combining the property with the adjacent property to the 

south (PIN 009A-000-0055-0000) is required to meet lot size and setback 
requirements.  

 
3. The proposed hours of operation are Monday – Friday 10 am to 4 pm and 

Saturdays by appointment.  
 

Conditional Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings 
 
The Board must find that the applicant meets all criteria in order for a conditional use 
permit to be approved.  Following is the staff suggested findings for each criterion (as is 
required by the UDO). 
 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 



  5/10/12 BOA Minutes: Page 3 

In granting a conditional use permit, the Board of Adjustment may attach to the permit 
such reasonable requirements in addition to those specified in this ordinance as this will 
ensure that the development in its proposed location meets the following: 
 
(a) The application is complete. 

1. The application is complete. 
 
(b) The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses 

as a conditional use indicated with a “C.” 
1. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as 

a conditional use indicated with a “C.” 
 
(c) The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this 

ordinance. 
1.  The proposal would meet this finding on condition that a recombination plat 
combining the property with parcel 009A-000-0055-0000 is recorded prior to 
operation of the business.  

 
(d) The conditional use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

1.  The proposed use should have no impact on public heath or safety. 
 
(e) The conditional use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property and will be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
1. The proposed location is currently used for commercial uses and is around 

commercially zoned property.  The use will not injure the value of the 
adjoining property and will be in harmony with the area.  

 
2. The surrounding land uses include: 

a. North: Undeveloped/SFD Zoning District: GB 
b. South: Commercial Zoning District: GB 
c.  East:  SFD Zoning District: GB 
d.  West:  Commercial Zoning District: GB 
 

(f) The conditional use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan and other 
officially adopted plans. 

 
1. The conditional use is in conformity with the Land Use Plan and other 

officially adopted plans.  
 

2. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this property as Full Service within the 
Moyock subarea.  Nonresidential uses within the Full Service Area should 
preserve the existing community character in scale, architectural style, 
materials, landscaping, and site design.  

 
3.   Land Use Plan policies that are relevant to this use: 
 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 



  5/10/12 BOA Minutes: Page 4 

POLICY TR6:  HIGHWAY 158/168 shall receive special attention 
concerning the proper development of land and properties adjoining 
and/or accessing this critical area.  

 
POLICY CD7: Attractive, environmentally beneficial LANDSCAPING shall 
be provided by new commercial or office developments, and in the 
rehabilitation and upgrading of existing developments. Appropriate 
BUFFERING or other effective DESIGN FEATURES may be employed to 
allow less intensive forms of commercial and office development to adjoin 
existing or planned residential uses. 
 
POLICY CA1: The important economic, tourism, and community image 
benefits of attractive, functional MAJOR HIGHWAY CORRIDORS through 
Currituck County shall be recognized. Such highway corridors, beginning 
with US 158 and NC 168, shall receive priority attention for improved 
appearance and development standards, including driveway access, 
landscaping, buffering, signage, lighting and tree preservation. 
 
POLICY ML4: Currituck County recognizes that the appearance and traffic 
moving function of the NC 168/ US 158 CORRIDOR is of exceptional 
importance to both the near term quality of life and long-term economic 
prospects for residents and property owners in the Mainland Area. The 
Transportation and Community Appearance policy sections of this plan 
shall be implemented to give priority to this issue. 

 
(g) The conditional use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate 

public facilities. 
1.  The proposed use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate 

public facilities. 
 
 

TRC/Staff Recommendation:  
The Technical Review Committee and staff recommend approval of this request 
subject to the findings of fact as presented above and the following conditions: 
 

1. A recombination plat combining parcels 009A-000-0054-0000 and 009A-000-
0055-0000 must be recorded in the Currituck County Register of Deeds office 
prior to operation of the auto sales business. 

2. Meet all other requirements of Section 3.6.1 of the UDO: 
a. No vehicle or boat shall be stored or displayed within the right-of-way of 

any public street. 
b. All major repairs shall be within enclosed buildings. For the purposes of 

this section “major repairs” shall be defined as any disassembling of the 
engine or drive-train or the changing of petroleum based fluids or the 
removal or assembly of sheet metal or fiberglass. 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 



  5/10/12 BOA Minutes: Page 5 

c. Wrecked, damaged or inoperable vehicle, boat, heavy equipment, or 
manufactured home storage areas shall be located behind the principal 
structure and shall not be visible from any public right-of-way. 

d. Permanent restroom facilities shall be provided in accordance with NC 
Building Code. 

e. No accessory buildings or storage shall be located between the public 
right-of-way and principle building on the site. 

f. There shall be no above ground or below ground storage facilities 
intended for hazardous vehicular fluids greater than 550 gallons on the 
site. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Mr. Bass questioned if the applicant had any concerns with meeting the 
recommendations as presented by staff.   
 
Ms. Wise said she had no problem meeting the recommendations as staff had 
presented. 
 
Mr. Chappell stated they had been in business at this property six years ago.  They had 
obtained approval from the state and were looking forward to working in Currituck 
County again. 
 
ACTION 
 
Mr. Palmer moved to approve the conditional use permit subject to staff’s findings of 
fact and recommendations.  Mr. Connor seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
Mr. Connor moved to approve the order for BOA 11-12 BARRY NELMS.  Ms. Dozier 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Connor moved to approve the order for BOA 11-13 ARNEY, THOMAS E.  Ms. 
Dozier seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss Ms. Dozier motioned for adjournment.  Mr. 
Connor seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at 8:01 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Tiffany B. Sanders/s/ 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 



  5/10/12 BOA Minutes: Page 6 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

 
Planning Technician 



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 
 

To:   Board of Adjustment 
 
From: Brad Schuler, Planner I 
  
Date: June 7, 2012 
 
Subject: BOA 12-10  Daniel Clay Cartwright Appeal  
 
 
Daniel Clay Cartwright is appealing staff’s determination regarding his application for a 
Special Use Permit for a Junk Yard/Salvage Yard at 128 Station Lane in Shawboro.  Below 
are details on the background of the case, letter of determination, and staff’s position.  
 
 
Background 
In the fall of 2011, Mr. Cartwright met with planning staff to inquire about using property at 
128 Station Lane in Shawboro for sorting scrap metal and storage of landscaping materials.  
Staff determined the use sought by Mr. Cartwright would be classified as a Junk 
Yard/Salvage Yard and was not allowed in the Agricultural (A) zoning district in which the 
property was zoned. A rezoning to the Heavy Manufacturing (HM) zoning district would be 
required.   
 
Mr. Cartwright applied for a conditional rezoning of the property from Agricultural to a 
Conditional District – Heavy Manufacturing.  Conditional zoning allows additional conditions 
and use limitations be placed on the district with the agreement of the applicant.  Mr. 
Cartwright requested uses be limited to the scrap metal operation and storage of landscaping 
materials, and to have the condition of screening the site with fencing.  The Board of 
Commissioners approved the application on December 5, 2011. 
 
After the rezoning, Mr. Cartwright still required a Special Use Permit for the Junk 
Yard/Salvage Yard as listed in the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  During the review 
process for the SUP, Mr. Cartwright verbally stated he disagreed with some of the 
requirements of the UDO.  Currin & Currin Attorneys at Law, representing nearby property 
owners, requested a letter of determination from staff clarifying the application’s use 
classification and its impact on the review process and UDO requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Memo
1 of 42



Letter of Determination 
The letter of determination prepared by staff made the following three determinations: 
 

1. Mr. Cartwright’s proposal is a Junk Yard/Salvage Yard and thus, the application is 
being processed as one, including requiring all standards listed in Section 3.8.1 
Junkyards and Salvage Yards. 

2. Since the use is classified as Junk Yard/Salvage Yard, that the proposal is subject to all 
requirements of Section 3.8.1. 

3. A “salvage yard” and “junk yard” are the same use as classified in the UDO and are 
subject to the same requirements. 

 
Mr. Cartwright has appealed each determination.  The Board may reverse or affirm (wholly or 
partly) or may modify the determinations with a four-fifths vote.  
 
 
Staff’s Position 
In regards to the above determinations: 
 

1. Mr. Cartwright’s proposal is a Junk Yard/Salvage Yard and thus, the application is 
being processed as one, including requiring all standards listed in Section 3.8.1 
Junkyards and Salvage Yards. 

 
Section 2.5.2.G of the UDO states: 
“If a use is not listed in the Permitted Uses Table, the administrator shall classify it with that use 
that is most similar to it.  In doing so, the administrator shall primarily rely upon similarity of 
operational characteristics and similarity of impacts on adjacent properties.  If the administrator 
determines that a use is not listed and is not similar to a use in the Permitted Uses Table, then such 
use is prohibited.”  
 
It is staff’s responsibility to classify proposed uses with a use listed in the Permitted Uses Table.  
In doing so, determinations on review processes and requirements of the UDO, including but not 
limited to parking and landscaping, can be made.  
 
Per Mr. Cartwright’s SUP application: 
“The property will be used for the purposes of recycling (receiving, processing and distributing) 
metals as well as other materials such as, but not limited to, mulch, stone, concrete, plastic, etc.” 
 
Section 17.2 Definitions of the UDO states: 
“Junkyard or Salvageyard 
A lot, land or structure or part thereof, used primarily for the collecting, processing, storage 
and/or sale of salvage paper, animal hides, rags, rubber, glass, scrap metal, lumber, or other 
building or other building marterials, or for the dismantling of parts thereof.  Any lot with vehicles 
stored without current registration plates or having an amount of trash, either burnable or non-
burnable, considered as excessive in the judgment of the administrator, shall be classified as a 
junkyard and will require the appropriate zoning and permits.“ 
 
Both the proposed use and Junkyard or Salvageyard definition contain the language of 
receiving (collecting) and processing scrap metal.  It is staff’s position that Mr. Cartwright’s 
proposal is most similar to the definition of Junkyard or Salvageyard than any other use listed 
in the Permitted Uses Table. It also does not meet the definition of any other use listed in the 
Permitted Uses Table.  If Mr. Cartwright’s proposal is found not be similar to a use in the 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Memo
2 of 42



Permitted Uses Table, then such use is prohibited, and a text amendment to the UDO would be 
required to establish such use in the county.  
 
Staff also notes that the determination of the proposed use to Junk Yard/Salvage Yard was 
made during the rezoning process.  Mr. Cartwright specifically applied for a rezoning to the 
Heavy Manufacturing zoning district as this is the only district to allow a Junk Yard/Salvage 
Yard.  The subsequent requirements of a Junk Yard/Salvageyard are also noted in the 
Technical Review Committee comments and Case Analysis of the rezoning application.   
 

2. Since the use is classified as Junk Yard/Salvage Yard, that the proposal is subject 
to all requirements of Section 3.8.1. 

 
Chapter 3: Special Requirements list requirements for specific uses allowed in the county.  
These special requirements must be met along with all other applicable requirements in the 
UDO.  The Permitted Uses Table also lists the special requirements section with the use.  The 
table states: 
 
Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 
Industrial, Manufacturing, 
Warehousing, Wholesaling,&  
Solid Waste Uses 

 A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements 

Junk Yards & Salvage 
Yards IV           S 3.8.1 

 
Section 3.8.1 Junkyards and Salvage Yards states: 
 
3.8.1 Junkyards and Salvage Yards (Special Use Permit only) 
 
A. A junkyard may not be placed within 1000 feet of a primary highway right-of-way. 
B. Junkyards shall be screened so as not to be visible from (i) any state maintained road using 

a minimum six foot privacy fence; (ii) screening from adjacent residential or non-residential 
properties is also required. 

C. Burning of non-vegetative matter shall not be permitted. 
D. Disposal of garbage unrelated to motor vehicles shall be in an approved container and 

regularly maintained.  Open dumping of garbage shall be prohibited. 
E. Disposal of toxic/hazardous matter is prohibited anywhere in the county without a state 

permit, and a conditional use permit from the county, in an approved site. 
F. Stock piling of tires and batteries is prohibited. 
G. Drainage of junkyards shall be adequate to assure that no standing water shall exist. 
H. Weeds and vegetation shall be kept at a height not to exceed 12 inches. 
I. Storage of vehicles shall be so arranged as to permit easy access to all such junk for fire 

fighting purpose.  
J. A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan shall be submitted according to the North 

Carolina Erosion and Sedimentation Control Act and a copy must be kept on file in the 
administrator's office. 

 
It is staff’s position that all requirements of this section are applicable to Mr. Cartwright’s SUP 
application.  This is due to the third determination, that the UDO classifies a junk yard and 
salvage yard as the same use.  
 
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Memo
3 of 42



3. A “salvage yard” and “junk yard” are the same use as classified in the UDO and 
are subject to the same requirements. 

 
To determine what a salvage yard and junk yard is, and if a proposed use meets that use 
classification, one would reference Chapter 17: Definitions.  This chapter defines all uses 
permitted in the county.  As listed above, there is a single definition for “Junkyard or 
Salvageyard”:  
 
“Junkyard or Salvageyard 
A lot, land or structure or part thereof, used primarily for the collecting, processing, storage 
and/or sale of salvage paper, animal hides, rags, rubber, glass, scrap metal, lumber, or other 
building or other building marterials, or for the dismantling of parts thereof.  Any lot with vehicles 
stored without current registration plates or having an amount of trash, either burnable or non-
burnable, considered as excessive in the judgment of the administrator, shall be classified as a 
junkyard and will require the appropriate zoning and permits.“ 
 
Both terms, junkyard and salvage yard, which are listed together in Chapter 17 and the 
Permitted Uses Table, have the same definition.  This means both terms as listed in the UDO 
are the same and interchangeable.  Whenever the term junkyard is mentioned in the UDO, a 
salvageyard is subject to the same requirement, because they are the same use.  
 
It is also staff’s position that the definition is whole, and can not be separated to give different 
meanings to the words junkyard and salvageyard.  The applicant may argue that since the 
second sentence of the definition expressly states “junkyard”, that only a junkyard, and not a 
salvageyard, is a lot with excessive unregistered vehicles or trash, and only a salvageyard is a 
lot used primarily for collecting and processing scrap metal.  However, the first sentence of the 
definition does not expressly state junkyard or salvageyard, and therefore is both a junkyard 
and salvageyard.   
 
 
In conclusion: 
 

• Mr. Cartwright’s application for using the property for “purposes of recycling 
(receiving, processing and distributing) metals” is most similar to the definition of 
Junkyard or Salvageyard in the UDO. 

• A “junkyard” and “salvageyard” are the same use as defined in the UDO, and 
therefore; 

• Mr. Cartwright’s application is subject to all requirements of Section 3.8.1 Junkyards 
and Salvage Yards.  

 
 
In reference the information above, the county submits the following: 
 

1. Attachment 1: Appeal Application. 
2. Attachment 2: Determination Request from Robin T. Currin of Currin & Currin Attorneys 

at Law dated April 18, 2012. 
3. Attachment 3: Letter of Determination from Brad Schuler, Planner I dated April 30, 

2012.   
4. Attachment 4: Application and narrative of use from Mr. Cartwright’s Special Use 

Permit Application. 
5. Attachment 5: Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table, of the UDO.  

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Memo
4 of 42



6. Attachment 6: Chapter 17: Definitions, Page 17-25 the UDO stating the definition of 
“Junkyard or Salvageyard.” 

7. Attachment 7: Section 3.8.1 Junkyards and Salvage Yards, of the UDO. 
8. Attachment 8: Conditional Rezoning application.  
9. Attachment 9: Technical Review Committee comments of the conditional rezoning 

application dated October 13, 2011. 
10. Attachment 10: Case analysis of the conditional rezoning application.  

  
 
 
 

 
 

 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Memo
5 of 42



Attachment 1 - Appeal Application
6 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 1 - Appeal Application
7 of 42



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 1 - Appeal Application
8 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 1 - Appeal Application
9 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 1 - Appeal Application
10 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 2 - Determination Request
11 of 42



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 2 - Determination Request
12 of 42



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 2 - Determination Request
13 of 42



 
 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
 

Department of Planning and Community Development 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929-0070 
Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 

www.currituckgovernment.com 
 

April 30, 2012 
 
 
Robin T. Currin 
Currin & Currin Attorneys at Law 
PO Box 86 
Raleigh, NC 27602 
robincurrin@aol.com 
 
VIA EMAIL AND U.S. MAIL 
 

RE: Cartwright Application for a Special Use Permit (PB 12-06)  
 
Dear Ms. Currin: 
 

This letter is in response to your inquiries regarding PB 12-06, a special use permit  
(SUP) request for a Junk Yard/Salvage Yard by Daniel Clay Cartwright at 128 Station 
Lane in Shawboro.  Below is staff’s determination on the use classification, and its impact 
on the application process and UDO requirements.  

 
1. It is correct that there is no such use as a “scrap yard” in the UDO, and Mr. 

Cartwright is stating he is proposing a “scrap yard” and not a Junk 
Yard/Salvage Yard as listed in the UDO.  However, it is staff’s 
responsibility to classify Mr. Cartwright’s proposal with the use listed in the 
UDO that is most similar to it, as stated in Section 2.5.  It is staff’s 
determination that Mr. Carwright’s proposal is a Junk Yard/Salvage Yard 
and thus, the application is being processed as one, including requiring all 
standards listed in Section 3.8.1 Junkyards and Salvage Yards.  

 
2. In order for the Board of Commissioners to approve a special use permit 

request, they must make seven findings of fact as listed in Section 11.7 of 
the UDO, including that “the conditions proposed meet or exceed the 
minimum requirements of this ordinance.”  It is staff’s determination that 
since the use is classified as Junk Yard/Salvage Yard, that the proposal is 
subject to all requirements of Section 3.8.1, and must meet these 
requirements in order make the finding above.   

 
Should Mr. Cartwright disagree with staff’s determination, he may appeal 
the determination to the Board of Adjustment and request to be classified 
as another use listed in the UDO.  

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 3 - Letter of Determination
14 of 44



3. It is staff’s determination that a “salvage yard” and “junk yard” are the 
same use as classified in the UDO and are subject to the same 
requirements.  

 
Should you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at your 

earliest convenience.  
 
 

 Sincerely, 

                       
 Brad Schuler 
 Planner I 
 
cc: Daniel Clay Cartwright 
 Ike McRee 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 3 - Letter of Determination 
15 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP.
16 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP.
17 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP.
18 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP. 
19 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP. 
20 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP. 
21 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP. 
22 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 4 - Application and Narrative from Cartwright SUP. 
23 of 44



 

2-12 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

CHAPTER 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS 

Office & Service 
Retail 
Recreation & Entertainment 
Industrial, Manufacturing, Warehousing, Distribution, & Solid Waste 
Agriculture & Livestock 
Other 
 
2.5.2 Table Key 
The following is a list of the meanings of table entries: 
 
A. “Z”-indicates that the use is permitted by right in the zoning district and only 

requires a zoning permit 
 
B. “C”-indicates that the use is permitted with a conditional use permit in the zoning 

district 
 
C. “S”-indicates that the use is permitted with a special use permit in the zoning 

district 
 
D. “ZS or “ZC” indicates that such developments require a zoning  permit if the lot to 

be developed is less than five acres in size and a special or conditional use permit, 
respectively, if the lot is five acres or larger in area. 

 
E. “SR”- a section number listed in the column indicates that the use has special 

requirements for the zoning district in which it is permitted.  The section number 
refers to the regulations in Chapter 4 

 
F. “LUC” – a roman numeral listed in the column indicates the land use code for each 

use and determines the required bufferyard established in the Table of Bufferyard 
Requirements in Chapter 5 

 
G. If a use is not listed in the Permitted Uses Table, the administrator shall classify it 

with that use that is most similar to it.  In doing so, the administrator shall primarily 
rely upon similarity of operational characteristics and similarity of impacts on 
adjacent properties.  If the administrator determines that a use is not listed and is 
not similar to a use in the Permitted Uses Table, then such use is prohibited. 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 5 - Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table.
24 of 44



 

2-13 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

CHAPTER 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Residential Uses  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Accessory Dwellings (apartment) II  S     Z      

Accessory Structures (residential) I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  Z   3.2.1 

Accessory Uses I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  Z   3.2.2 

Assisted Living  Facilities II C C     Z      

Boarding House, Rooming House II C C     C  C    

Family Care Homes I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  Z   3.2.4 

Home Occupations (accessory use) I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  Z Z  3.2.2 

Home Occupations (non-accessory use) II C C C C C C Z  Z C C 3.2.3 

Hunting & Fishing Lodges II Z Z Z Z  Z Z  Z    

Mobile Homes (Class A)-1 unit per lot I Z Z Z   Z Z  Z   3.2.5 

Mobile Homes (Class A)-2 units per lot I Z Z Z   Z Z  Z   3.2.5 

Mobile Homes (Class B)-1 unit per lot I C C C   C C  C C C 3.2.5, 3.2.8 

Mobile Homes (Class B)-2 units per lot I C C          3.2.5, 3.2.8 

Multi-family (townhomes, condos, apartments) II       S  S   3.2.6 

Multi-family (duplex) II  S     Z     3.2.6 

Multi-family Conversion II  S     Z     3.2.6 

Nursing Care Facilities  III C C     Z      

Resident Manager/Caretaker Dwellings I        C  C C  

Single Family, detached-1 unit per lot I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  Z    

Single Family, detached-2 units per lot I Z Z Z   Z Z  Z   2.6.2 
Temporary Emergency, Construction, & Repair 
Residences 

I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z 3.2.7 

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Civic & Government  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

ABC Stores III    C   Z Z Z    

Civil Defense Operations III S S S S S S S S S S S  

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 5 - Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table. 
25 of 44



 

2-14 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

                                                                                                                                                  CHAPTER 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS 

Government Offices III Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  

Law Enforcement & Emergency Services III S S S S S S S S S S S  

Schools (elementary & secondary) & Associated Uses II Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z    

Security Training Operations & Services Facilities III S           3.3.1 

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Institutional  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Cemeteries, Family and Church II Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z 3.4.1 

Cemeteries (principal use) II C C        Z Z  

Colleges, Universities, & Associated Uses II S S        S S  

Correctional Facilities III          S S  

Crematoriums II           S  

Daycare Centers III C C C C   Z Z Z Z Z  

Hospitals & Clinics (not more than 10,000 sq. ft.) III C C C C   Z Z Z Z Z  

Hospitals & Clinics (greater than 10,000 sq. ft.) III  S     S S  S S  

Institutions for the Mentally Ill III  S        S S  
Museums, Libraries, Art Galleries, Art Centers, & Similar 
Uses 

II S S S C   Z Z Z Z Z  

Religious Institutions I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  

Residential Care Institutions III  S     S S  S S  

Schools (private instructional) II       C C C Z Z  

Schools (trade or vocational) II S S     S S S S S  

Social, Fraternal, Civic Organizations II Z Z C    Z C C Z Z  

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Office & Service  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Animal Services (no outdoor kennels) III Z      Z Z  Z Z  

Animal Services (with outdoor kennels) III C      C C  Z Z 3.5.1 

Animal Services (with explosives training) III S           3.5.2 

Automotive Services & Repair III       Z Z  Z Z 3.5.3 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 5 - Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table. 
26 of 44



 

2-15 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

CHAPTER 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS

Bed & Breakfast Inns II C C C C  C Z  Z   3.5.4 

Boat Ramps (publicly owned) III S S S S S S S S S S S  

Boat Ramps (privately owned) III     Z/C Z/C Z/C Z/C     

Boat Services & Repair III       Z Z Z Z Z  

Car Washes III       Z Z Z Z Z  

Drive-thru Uses III       C C C Z Z  

Dry Cleaning & Laundromats III       Z Z Z Z Z  

Funeral Homes III       Z Z Z Z Z  

Heavy Equipment Services & Repair III       C C  C C 3.6.1 

Hotels/Motels III       Z/C Z/C Z/C   3.5.5 

Marinas (privately owned) III     C C C C C   3.5.6 

Professional Offices III C C C C C  Z Z Z Z Z 3.5.7 

Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios IV       C C  C C 3.5.8 

Taxi Service III C      Z Z Z   3.5.9 

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Retail  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Auction Houses III       C      

Automotive Sales & Rental III       C C  C C 3.6.1 

Boat Sales & Rental III       C C  C C 3.6.1 

Convenience Stores III       Z Z Z    

Drive-thru Uses III       Z Z C Z Z  

Roadside, Farmer, or Craft Markets III C      Z Z Z Z Z  

Flea Markets III       C C C C C 3.6.2 

Heavy Equipment Sales & Rental III       C C  C C 3.6.1 

Manufactured/Modular Home Sales III       C C  C C 3.6.1 

Nurseries or Greenhouses II Z Z     Z Z Z Z Z  

Pawn Shops IV        S  S S  

Restaurants (with drive-through) III       Z Z C Z Z  

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 5 - Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table. 
27 of 44



 

2-16 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

                                                                                                                                                  CHAPTER 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS 

Restaurants (without drive-through) III       Z Z Z Z Z  

Retail Uses III       Z Z C Z/S Z/S  

Shopping Centers III       S S    3.6.3 

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Recreation & Entertainment  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Adult Establishments IV           S 3.7.1 

Athletic & Exercise Facilities (indoor) III       C C C Z Z  

Automotive & Motorcycle Racing Tracks IV           S  

Bars & Nightclubs III       C C C C C  

Campgrounds, Recreation (private) III      S      3.7.2 

Campgrounds, Recreation (public) III S S S S S S S S S S S 3.7.2 

Entertainment Uses (indoor) III       Z Z Z Z Z  

Entertainment Uses (outdoor) II       S S  S S  

Horseback Riding, Schools, Boarding III C C C    C C  C C  

Indoor Recreational Facilities (temporary) III       S S S S S 3.10.6 

Outdoor Recreational Facilities (private) II S S S S S S S S S S S  

Outdoor Recreational Facilities (public) II Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  

Outdoor Tour Operators II       S S S   3.7.3 

Recreation Grounds III      S      3.7.4 

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 
Industrial, Manufacturing, Warehousing, 
Wholesaling,&  Solid Waste Uses  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Incinerators IV           S  

Junk Yards & Salvage Yards IV           S 3.8.1 
Landfills & Convenience Centers, County Owned or 
Operated Sanitary 

IV S S S S S S S S S S S  

Landfills, Demolition IV S S S    S S S S S  

Landfills, Reclamation IV C C C C C C C C C C C  

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 5 - Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table. 
28 of 44



 

2-17 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

CHAPTER 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS

Manufacturing, Light III C C     C C C Z Z 3.8.2 

Manufacturing, Heavy IV C         Z Z  

Mining & Quarrying Operations IV S S        S S 3.8.3 

Mini Warehousing III       C C  Z Z  

Office Warehouses III       Z Z  Z Z  

Warehousing & Distribution III C         Z Z  

Wholesale Trade III       C Z Z Z Z  

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Agriculture & Livestock  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Agribusinesses III C C     Z Z  Z Z 3.9.1 

Agricultural Uses (nonexempt without livestock) III Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  

Agricultural Uses (nonexempt with livestock) III Z Z   Z     Z Z  

Land Applications of Commercial Sludge & Septage IV C           3.9.2 

Silvicultural Operations III Z Z Z   Z Z Z Z Z Z  

Stockyards, Slaughterhouses, & Rendering IV C          C  

Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 

Other  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements

Adaptive Reuse of Historic Properties III C C C C C C C C C C C 3.10.1 

Airports (county-owned or operated) IV S S S S S S S S S S S  

Airports or Airstrips (private) IV S   S      S S  

Automobile Parking III       C C C Z Z  

Crabshedding III Z Z Z   Z    Z Z 3.10.2 
Lifeguard Stations with Accessory Beach Rentals, 
County Authorized 

I    Z         

Outdoor Display III       Z Z Z Z Z 3.10.3 

Outdoor Storage III       Z Z Z Z Z 3.10.3 

Special Events I S S S S S S S S S S S 3.10.4 

Temporary Construction & Sales Office I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z 3.10.5 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 5 - Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table. 
29 of 44



 

2-18 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

                                                                                                                                                  CHAPTER 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS 

Temporary Storage, Offices, Caretaker dwellings I Z  Z    Z Z  Z Z  

Temporary Tents & Tent Sales I Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z 3.10.6 

Telecommunications Towers (50 feet or less) III Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z 3.10.7 

Telecommunications Towers (more than 50 feet) III C C     C C  C C 3.10.7 
Telecommunications Towers (non-commercial amateur 
100 feet or less) 

III C C C C C C C C C C C 3.10.7 

Towers, Other Including Water (50 feet or less) III Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z  

Towers, Other Including Water (more than 50 feet) III C C     C C  C C  

Utility Facilities III Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z 3.10.8 

Wind Energy Facilities, Small System III Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z 3.10.9 

Wind Energy Facilities, Large Scale III S S S S S S S S S S S 3.10.9 

Wind Energy Facilities, Utility Scale III S S S S S S S S S S S 3.10.9 
 
Amended: (PB 07-68, 1-22-08); (PB 08-49, 10/20/08); (PB 08-55, 5/18/09); (09-06, 8/17/09); (09-25, 9/21/09); (09-29, 10/19/09); (10-12, 4/5/10) 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 5 - Section 2.5: Permitted Uses Table. 
30 of 44



 

17-25 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

 

CHAPTER 17:  DEFINITIONS 

Incinerator  
A furnace or container for the purpose of burning waste or non-waste materials.  
 
Individual Lot Design and Building Construction  
The second stage of development requiring a building site plan indicating maritime 
forests and intended clearing thereof before building permits are granted.  
 
Institutional Use  
A use of a semi-public nature that typically serve community needs including but not 
limited to daycares, places of worship, colleges, schools, hospitals, research facilities, 
museums, assisted living facilities, residential care facilities, and other long-term 
medical care facilities.  
 
Institutions for the Mentally Ill  
A residential care facility for the treatment of patients with diagnosed mental illnesses.  
 
Intermediate Care Home  
A facility maintained for the purpose of providing accommodations for not more than 
seven occupants needing medical care and supervision at a lower level than that 
provided in a nursing care institution but at a higher level than that provided in 
institutions for the handicapped or infirm.  
 
Intermediate Care Institution  
An institutional facility maintained for the purpose of providing accommodations for 
more than seven persons needing medical care and supervision at a lower level than 
that provided in a nursing care institution but at a higher level than that provided in 
institutions for the handicapped or infirm.  
 
Junkyard or Salvageyard  
A lot, land or structure or part thereof, used primarily for the collecting, processing, 
storage and/or sale of salvage paper, animal hides, rags, rubber, glass, scrap metal, 
lumber or other building materials, or for the dismantling of parts thereof. Any lot with 
more than two vehicles stored without current registration plates or having an amount of 
trash, either burnable or non-burnable, considered as excessive in the judgment of the 
administrator, shall be classified as a junkyard and will require the appropriate zoning 
and permits.  
 
K-9 Training Facility for Explosives    
A site designed to handle the training of dogs in the areas of, security, drug and 
explosive detection only.  This definition explicitly excludes the training of dogs for the 
detection of cadavers and attack dog training.  
 
K-9 Training Facility for Obedience 
A site designed to handle the training of dogs in the area of obedience only.  This use 
will be for pet and domesticated dog training.  
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 6 - Chapter 17: Definitions, Page 17-25.
31 of 44



 

3-33 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance 

CHAPTER 3:  SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

 
Section 3.8 Industrial, Manufacturing, Warehousing, Wholesale, Distribution, & 

Solid Waste Uses 
 
3.8.1 Junkyards & Salvage Yards (Special Use Permit only) 
 
A. A junkyard may not be placed within 1000 feet of a primary highway right-of-way. 
 
B. Junkyards shall be screened so as not to be visible from (i) any state maintained 

road using a minimum six foot privacy fence; (ii) screening from adjacent 
residential or non-residential properties is also required. 

 
C. Burning of non-vegetative matter shall not be permitted. 
 
D. Disposal of garbage unrelated to motor vehicles shall be in an approved container 

and regularly maintained.  Open dumping of garbage shall be prohibited. 
 
E. Disposal of toxic/hazardous matter is prohibited anywhere in the county without a 

state permit, and a conditional use permit from the county, in an approved site. 
 
F. Stock piling of tires and batteries is prohibited. 
 
G. Drainage of junkyards shall be adequate to assure that no standing water shall 

exist. 
 
H. Weeds and vegetation shall be kept at a height not to exceed 12 inches. 
 
I. Storage of vehicles shall be so arranged as to permit easy access to all such junk 

for fire fighting purpose.  
 
J. A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan shall be submitted according to the 

North Carolina Erosion and Sedimentation Control Act and a copy must be kept on 
file in the administrator's office. 

 
3.8.2 Manufacturing, Light 
 
A. For all light manufacturing uses located within a commercial zoning district, the 

following shall apply: 
 

1. Light manufacturing use must include retail sales on the premises. 
 

2. Where the use abuts a residential use or a residential zone an opaque (Type 
A) screen shall be installed to shield neighboring property from the view of 
any building.  If a fence is used to accomplish the opaque screen, evergreen 
vegetation shall be planted outside of the screen such that within six years 
the fence will not be visible from a distance of at least 10 feet.  A semi-

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 7 - Section 3.8.1 Junkyards and Salvage Yards
32 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 8 - Conditional Rezoning Application.
33 of 44



BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 8 - Conditional Rezoning Application.
34 of 44



  

Currituck County  
Department of Planning 

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

252-232-3055 
FAX 252-232-3026 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Daniel C. Cartwright 
 
From: Brad Schuler, Planner I 
 
Date: October 13, 2011  
 
Re:  Murky Waters – Conditional Zoning 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the October 19, 2011 TRC meeting.  TRC 
comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC meeting.  Please provide responses 
by October 24th for the November 8th Planning Board meeting.  
 
Planning, Brad Schuler 252-232-6033 
Questions to the applicant: 

1. Please provide more information regarding the metal operations proposed.  
2. Please provide more information on the waste oil containment area.  Size of tanks or 

containers? 
3. Please provide more information regarding the site’s utilities.  Is it currently hooked up to 

the county water system or well?  Is there on-site septic?  If it does not have water or 
septic, will they be added?  

4. Are the adjacent properties on well?  If so, where are the wells located? 
 
Zoning Conditions to Consider (must be agreed upon with the owner): 

1. Large trees shall be planted along the back property line in addition to the proposed 
fence to screen the use from NC Highway 34. (LUP Policy CA1) 

2. The stockpile of materials (scrap metal, rock, concrete, mulch, etc.) shall not exceed the 
height of the eight foot tall fence.  (LUP Policy CA9) 

 
Site Plan/UDO Comments: 
If the conditional zoning is approved, the following standards will be required for the use 
proposed.  Staff will conduct a complete review of a site plan during the special use permit 
application process.  The site plan must be drawn to scale in a professional like manner and show 
the items listed in the SUP application.  

1. One parking space shall be provided per 200 square feet of gross floor area.  All 
vehicular areas shall be installed with the requirements of Chapter 8 of the UDO including 
but not limited to surface type, aisle width, and driveway standards.  

2. A 12 x 55 foot loading zone shall be provided to accommodate sufficient off-street 
loading and unloading of delivery and shipment operations. 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 9 - Conditional Rezoning TRC Comments.
35 of 44



 

PB 11-17  Daniel C. Cartwright 
Conditional Zoning 

Page 2 of 4 

3. Bufferyards shall be installed along three of the property lines.  Specifically, a type “D” 
(50 feet in width) along the eastern line, a type “A” (25 feet in width) along Station Lane, 
and a type “C” along the rail road.  Please refer to Chapter 5 of the UDO for bufferyard 
options and requirements.  

4. All signage shall obtain a sign permit and be in compliance with Chapter 7 of the UDO.  
5. No junkyard shall be within 1,000 feet of a major highway.  The property is 

approximately 500 feet from NC 34, a major highway.  
6. Use must meet all other requirements of section 3.8.1 of the UDO.  

 
Other Concerns Regarding the Proposal: 

1. Due to the adjacent single family residences, the proposed use appears to be inconsistent 
the following Land Use Plan policies: 

 
 POLICY CD5: Incompatible or poorly planned COMMERCIAL ENCROACHMENT within or  
 immediately adjoining existing residential areas shall be prohibited. Such incompatible 
 encroachments often include, but are not limited to, large-scale commercial uses or   
 automobile-oriented commercial uses such as service stations, car lots, car washes, drive  
 through restaurants, and the like. 
 

 POLICY ID1: To diversify the local economy and broaden the local tax base, the County 
 shall encourage a public service and regulatory environment conducive to COMPATIBLE 
 INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT. “Compatible” shall be defined as, among other things, 
 Industries that do not adversely impact the environmental quality of the area, or 
 overburden the local infrastructure. 
 
 POLICY ID2: Industrial uses should not be located in areas that would diminish the
 desirability of  existing and planned NON-INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENTS, nor shall 
 incompatible non-industrial uses be allowed to encroach upon existing or planned 
 industrial sites. 
 
 POLICY ID6: New industrial development shall be encouraged to locate in existing  and/or 
 planned INDUSTRIAL PARKS. 
 

2. The Land Use Plan classifies the property as a Rural Area.   The Rural class is intended to 
provide for agriculture, forestry, and other allied uses traditionally associated with a rural 
area.  Preferred uses include very low-density dispersed development associated directly 
with farm uses. 

3. Station Lane, being only approximately 16 feet in width, may not be able to support 
large truck traffic to the property. 

4. The overall size of the outdoor storage area may be significantly reduced with the 
addition of required parking/drive areas and bufferyards.  

 
 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 252-232-6035 
Approved without comment. 
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Reviewed without comment. 
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 9 - Conditional Rezoning TRC Comments.
36 of 44



 

PB 11-17  Daniel C. Cartwright 
Conditional Zoning 

Page 3 of 4 

Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 252-232-6641 
Approved  

1. Any security gate must have a clear space of 20' free of latches, hinges, wheels etc. within 
that measurement. 

2. Any additional structures will require a fire hydrant within 400' of all portions and 
additional fire apparatus access requirements. 

3. Waste oil tank questions: 
  What size tank? 
  Vehicle protection? 
  How will the tank be filled? 
  How will the tank be emptied? 
  Probably should be at least twenty feet from anything else.  

4. Now, I am assuming that vehicles will be recycled here.  The powered equipment used to 
move the scrap material brings questions: 

  What is the equipment? 
  How will it be fueled?  Requirements are different than for farming.  Cannot be  
  from the back of a pick-up truck.  

 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
Currituck County Code Enforcement, Stacey Smith 
Reviewed 

1. I would recommend that we not allow the stock piles to exceed the height of the fence 
and/or buffer and such piles not be visible from the road. 

 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
Currituck County Economic Development, Peter Bishop 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
Reviewed without comment. 
 
NCDENR, Land Quality, Pat MCClain  
Reviewed 

1. An erosion and sedimentation control plan will be required if there is to be an acre of 
disturbance. 

 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 

1. Please consult with Health Department at (252) 232-6603 concerning office building.  
Does office building have an approved septic system? 

2. Please consult with NC Division of Waste Management-UST Section (Washington Regional 
Office) at (252) 946-6481 

 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 9 - Conditional Rezoning TRC Comments.
37 of 44



 

PB 11-17  Daniel C. Cartwright 
Conditional Zoning 

Page 4 of 4 

 
Comments not received from: 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
Currituck County Local Volunteer Fire Department 
Currituck County Schools, Dr. Megan Doyle 
Currituck County Sheriff, Susan Johnson 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 252-232-3360 
Navel Facilities Engineering Command, Community Plans Liaison Officer William DuFault 
NCDENR Aquifer Protection, David May 
NCDENR Environmental Health/Onsite Wastewater, Bob Uebler 
NCDENR, Environmental Management, Roger Thorpe 
NCDENR, Marine Fisheries, Kevin Hart 
NCDENR, Public Water, Siraj Chohan 
NCDENR Water Quality, Kim Colson 
NCDENR Water Quality/Surface Water Protection, Al Hodge 
NCDOT, Gretchen Byrum 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
NC Wildlife, Maria Dunn 
Centurylink, Kimberly Hoevenair 
Charter Communications, Sam Scilabba 
Dominion Power, Troy Lindsey 
Embarq, Hester Jones 
US Army Corps of Engineers, Kyle Barnes 910-251-4584 
 
The following items are necessary for resubmittal: 

• 3 - full size copies of revised plans. 
• 10 - 11”x17” copies of revised plans. 
• 1- 8.5”x11” copy of all revised plans. 
• 1- PDF digital copy of all revised documents and plans. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 9 - Conditional Rezoning TRC Comments.
38 of 44



 
PB 11-17   Daniel C. Cartwright 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 1  

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

December 5, 2011 
PB 11-17  Daniel C. Cartwright 
Conditional Zoning Request 

 
ITEM:   PB 11-17  Daniel C. Cartwright requests to rezone 1.10 acres from 

Agriculural (A) to Conditional District – Heavy Manufacturing District (CD-
HM).  
 

LOCATION: 128 Station Lane, Shawboro:  North side of Station Lane approximately 
500 feet west of Shawboro Road (NC 34) intersection, Crawford 
Township. 

TAX ID: 0033-000-0050-0000 
 
OWNER:  Currituck Grain Inc. 

PO Box 7100 
Virginia Beach, Va  23457 

 
APPLICANT:  Daniel Clay Cartwright 
   382 N. Gregory Road 
   Shawboro, NC  27973 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Agriculture A 
SOUTH Agriculture A 
EAST: Railroad Right-of-Way GB 
WEST: Single Family Dwelling A 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Rural within the 

Shawboro-Crawford subarea. 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A)   
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  Conditional District – Heavy Manufacturing (CD-HM) 
  
CURRENT USE: Agriculture 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 1.10 acres 
 
ZONING HISTORY: 1973: AO-1 - Agriculture-Open Space District   
 1975: A-40 - Agricultural District 
 1989: A - Agricultural District 
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 10 - Conditional Rezoning Case Analysis. 
39 of 44



 
PB 11-17   Daniel C. Cartwright 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 2  

UTILITIES:   Property is served by well water and has an approved septic 
permit.  There is potential for connection to the county’s water 
system.      

 
 The neighboring property to the east is also served by well water. 
 
TRANSPORTATION:  The property is accessed by Station Lane, an approximately 16 

foot wide state maintained road.  

FLOOD ZONE: The subject property is not located within the 100-year flood plain 
and is identified as Flood Zone X. 

 
WETLANDS: There are no wetlands on the property.  
 
SOILS: According to the Currituck County Soils Survey, the entire property 

has soils that are considered unsuitable. 
 
PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 

1. An 8 foot tall fence shall be installed and maintained around the perimeter of the 
property.  

 
COMMUNITY MEETING: 
A community meeting was held on October 13th, 2011.  A report of the meeting is attached.  
 
TECHNICAL STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The TRC reviewed the conceptual plan on October 19, 2011.  A formal site plan submittal 
must be reviewed by TRC prior to development. 
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
The planning staff recommends denial of the proposed conditional zoning request based on 
the following:  
 

• The proposed heavy manufacturing use can be considered inconsistent with the 
Rural land use classification.  The Rural class is intended to provide for agriculture, 
forestry, and other allied uses traditionally associated with a rural area.  Preferred 
uses include very low-density dispersed development associated directly with farm 
uses.  

 
• Due to the adjacent single family residences, the proposed use appears to be 

inconsistent the following Land Use Plan policies: 
 

 POLICY CD5: Incompatible or poorly planned COMMERCIAL ENCROACHMENT 
 within or immediately adjoining existing residential areas shall be prohibited. Such 
 incompatible encroachments often include, but are not limited to, large-scale 
 commercial uses or automobile-oriented commercial uses such as service stations, 
 car lots, car washes, drive through restaurants, and the like. 
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 10 - Conditional Rezoning Case Analysis. 
40 of 44



 
PB 11-17   Daniel C. Cartwright 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 3  

 POLICY ID1: To diversify the local economy and broaden the local tax base, the 
 County shall encourage a public service and regulatory environment conducive to 
 COMPATIBLE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT. “Compatible” shall be defined as, 
 among other things,  Industries that do not adversely impact the environmental 
 quality of the area, or overburden the local infrastructure. 
 
 POLICY ID2: Industrial uses should not be located in areas that would diminish the
 desirability of  existing and planned NON-INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENTS, nor shall 
 incompatible non-industrial uses be allowed to encroach upon existing or planned 
 industrial sites. 
 
 POLICY ID6: New industrial development shall be encouraged to locate in existing 
 and/or  planned INDUSTRIAL PARKS. 

 
• NCDOT has stated that Station Lane, being only approximately 16’ wide, can not 

support daily truck traffic.   
 
• The increased vehicle traffic and noise of the operation may disturb the residences 

on Station Lane and nearby property. 
 
• Sheriff Susan Johnson has concerns regarding the increased price of scrap metal 

and increased theft associated with it.  In a letter attached, she explains that during 
these times, scrap metal operations need constant monitoring by law enforcement to 
ensure compliance with the N.C.G.S.  She states that future request for these 
operations be scrutinized and evaluated on the location as it will effect both the 
community and law enforcement.  She recommends that when new scrap metal 
operations are approved in the county, the Sherriff’s Office would need another 
detective position to handle the demands presented by this type of business to meet 
the requirements of the statute.  Please see attached letter for full explanation. 

 
• The conceptual plan submitted does not illustrate required parking areas and 

bufferyards.   Further compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance may 
reduce the overall outdoor storage area.  

 
• Section 3.8.1 of the UDO states that no junkyard shall be within 1,000 feet of a major 

highway.  The property is approximately 500 feet from NC 34.  It is in staff’s opinion 
that NC 34 is a major highway. 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended denial of the conditional zoning request due to its 
inconsistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is not reasonable and not 
in the public interest and does not promote orderly growth and development and staff 
recommendations. Ms. Taylor seconded the motion.  Ayes:  Jim Clark, Joe Kovacs, Susan 
Taylor and John Wright. Nays: Fannie Newbern and Forrest Midgette. 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 10 - Conditional Rezoning Case Analysis. 
41 of 44



 
PB 11-17   Daniel C. Cartwright 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 4  

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (11/8/11)   
Mr. Cartwright stated that this property was used for a saw mill, and prior to that it was a 
cotton mill. Mr. Cartwright stated that the Department of Transportation (DOT) originally 
stated that Station Lane would not support daily truck traffic, but after he talked to them 
DOT has sent another comment stating Station Lane would support daily truck traffic. 
Mr. Cartwright talked about the height of the stock piles, the eight foot tall fence, and 
buffering. Mr. Cartwright stated this is an ideal spot for a scrap yard. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what the hours of operation will be. 
 
Mr. Cartwright stated daylight hours and five or six days per week. 
 
Mr. Wright asked where the closest heavy manufacturing district is as it relates to this 
property.  
 
Mr. Cartwright stated approximately 400 yards. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked if the railroad tracks would be utilized. 
 
Mr. Cartwright stated yes. 
 
Mr. Midgette stated that the Unified Development Ordinance classifies a junk yard and 
scrap yard as the same. Mr. Midgette stated in his opinion they are not. 
 
Mr. Litten stated he is concerned with noise, traffic, hours of operation, debris, dust, 
thief issues, and decreasing property values. Mr. Litten is asking the Planning Board to 
deny this request. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked Mr. Litten if he attended the community meeting. 
 
Mr. Litten stated no. 
 
Ms. Miller stated she is concerned with traffic, hours of operation, and this request is not 
in line with the county’s goals. Ms. Miller would like this property to remain in an 
agricultural district and it is of no benefit to the community. Ms. Miller is asking the 
Planning Board to deny this request. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked Ms. Miller if she attended the community meeting. 
 
Ms. Miller stated no, but she was not aware of the meeting. 
 
Ms. Etheridge stated Mr. Cartwright lead people to believe that he wanted to store 
landscaping material on this site and some people are still under this impression. The 
county ordinance states heavy manufacturing districts seem to have the most significant 
impact on communities. Ms. Etheridge provided the uses of a heavy manufacturing 
district. Ms. Etheridge is concerned with traffic, debris, decreasing property values, and 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 10 - Conditional Rezoning Case Analysis. 
42 of 44



 
PB 11-17   Daniel C. Cartwright 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 5  

how unsightly a scrap yard will look in a residential community. Ms. Etheridge stated Mr. 
Cartwright does not own the property. Ms. Etheridge is asking the Planning Board to 
deny this request. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked Ms. Etheridge if she attended the community meeting. 
 
Ms. Etheridge stated no. 
 
Mr. Ray Etheridge is asking the Planning Board to deny this request.  
 
Mr. Fred Etheridge stated he is asking the Planning Board to deny this request. Mr. 
Etheridge stated he does not want a junk yard in this community. He is also concerned 
with traffic, dust and noise. 
 
Ms. Litten stated she is concerned with traffic, thief issues, and the negative side 
affects. Ms. Litten is asking the Planning Board to deny this request. 
 
Mr. Cartwright addressed noise, traffic and crime issues. Mr. Cartwright stated since he 
is asking for a conditional zoning request his uses would be in the original application 
which are a scrap yard and landscaping materials. Mr. Cartwright asked planning staff 
to read the statement recently submitted by DOT. 
 
Mr. Schuler read an email statement from DOT dated November 7, 2011. 
 
Mr. Cartwright stated he feels this request will be a positive influence on the community. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs moved to deny PB 11-17 due to its inconsistency with the 2006 Land Use 
Plan and that the request is not reasonable and not in the public interest and does not 
promote orderly growth and development and staff recommendations. Ms. Taylor 
seconded the motion.  Ayes:  Jim Clark, Joe Kovacs, Susan Taylor and John Wright. 
Nays: Fannie Newbern and Forrest Midgette. 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 10 - Conditional Rezoning Case Analysis. 
43 of 44



 
PB 11-17   Daniel C. Cartwright 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 6  

 

 
 

 
 
 

BOA 12-10 Cartwright Appeal
Attachment 10 - Conditional Rezoning Case Analysis
44 of 44.


	boaagenda-12june14
	5-10-12 BOA Minutes
	BOA 12-10 Packet



